A. IDENTITY OF APPELLANT 

I, John Bettys, appellant, pro se, asks the court accepts the 

review under RAP 2.2 of the trial court errors listed below. 

B. 

1. 

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS 

The trial court erred by modifying the correctly entered 

final judgment by order December 17, 2013, where court's 

authority to sentence does not extend to discretion for 

modifying the sentence without legal error. 

2. The trial court erred allowing 'Indeterminate Sentencing 

Review' of the RCW 9.94A.535 sentence, where statutory 

law required 'Determinate Sentence Review' only. 

3. The trial court erred if finding 'factual basis' for the 

essential element of 'sexual contact' to sustain charge 

and conviction of child molestation, where child's live 

testimony and evidence established only the non-sexual 

purpose for the alleged fleeting touch over clothing, by 

a related adult overnight caretaker of the child. 

4. The trial court erred including a washed-out coviction in 

the offender score, where exclusion had vested prior. 

ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMEh~S OF ERRORS 

Errorll 1: The trial court lacked jurisdiction to modify a final 

judgment & sentnece entered November 26, 2013, where no legal error 

was claimed by the moving party, and no statute authorized actions 

of the trial court at the time. 

The trial court abused discretion entering the order December 17, 

2013, where the court applied the wrong legal standards in the laws, 

or took a view no reasonable person would take on a care function. 

APPEllANI' BRIEF - 1 



The power to sentence does not carry with it the power for a 

trial court to modify the sentence at a later time merely because 

it appears in retrospect a different ruling might be more preferred 

by one party to the action. 

The importance of finality in a rendered judgment precludes a 

modification, where modification would interfere with a party's 

protected constitutional right to appeal. CPI87-208; 

The constitutional rights to protection from 'double jeopardy' 

extend to ensure that a sentence is not later increased by a State's 

attorney, therefore the trial court improperly entered such an order 

December 17, 2013, increasing the set January 1, 2014 release date 

of the appellant for the Department of Corrections, without finding 

actual legal error in the final judgment on official record. 

Error# 2: The trial court ignored legislative command stated 

clearly in RCW 9.94A.535 that the sentence be 'Determinate Only: as 

trial court allowed appellant held for 'Indeterminate Sentencing 

Review' of appellant's sentence by the Department of Correction's 

'Indeterminate Sentence Review Board' (ISRB). C P I-fo:;z - '-Fie. 

The trial court abused discretion modifying a correct sentence 

December 17, 2013, where State's attorney advised that Department 

of Corrections could not complete a review before January 1, 2014 

release date established in the exceptional sentence RCW 9.94A.535 

imposed. CP 164-176; 

RCW 9.94A.535 was modified by the legislature in 2005 for the 

exclusion of 'Indeterminate Sentence Review' of all the exceptional 

sentences imposed by the trial court, therefore trial court applied 
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the wrong legal standards, in violation of legislative command in 

the wording of RCW 9.94A.535, which no reasonable person would take 

under the known circumstances presented in this case. 

There is substantial public interest in having the statutes of 

Washington applied properly by the criminal trial courts, where the 

Indeterminate Sentence Review Board does not have authority under 

law to increase those RCW 9.94A.535 sentences post Blakley V. 

Washington, 542 U.S. 296, 124 S.Ct. 2531 (2004). 

The Blakley decision is the reason the legislature modified the 

RCW 9.94A.535 statute in the 'Laws of Washington 2005, Chapter 68, 

Section 3' to avoid the error presented in this case, however this 

trial court ignored the wording of the statute. cr 4tJ.).-LlYbj 

Error' 3: The trial court erred finding any 'factual basis' for 

the essential required element of 'sexual contact' to sustain charge 

or conviction under child molestation, where 'sexual contact' would 

require 'intent or purpose' of 'sexual gratification: and evidence 

does not support the required element. 

The trial court must establish an independent 'factual basis' 

for guilt in an 'alfords plea: as the defendant claimed innocents 

of all actions, and the alleged child victim stated on record that 

the sole intent or purpose in the charged fleeting touch outside of 

his clothing, by the related adult caretaker, was to check a pull-up 

diaper that the child was wearing under his clothing, per evidence. 

The State's witnesses testified to the child being in appellant's 

care or custody overnight, and daily being driven to school by this 

appellant, who had parental consent required under WAC 388-15-009(3) 
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to provide their child hygiene, medical care, or child care, and 

therefore the appellant's alleged touch to the outside of child's 

clothing for checking the pull-up diaper could not constitute the 

basis for an sexual crime in Washington State. 

The trial court abused discretion by ignoring Washington State's 

laws, where the trial court applied the wrong legal standards to a 

ruling, and took a view no reasonable person would take. 

The records established the appellant as the child's caretaker, 

where appellant bathed the child, fed the child, disciplined this 

child, baby-sat the child overnight, and drove the child to school 

on a daily basis, all with parental consent. 

The child was proven to wear pull-up diapers, which his mother's 

testimony claimed she helped him with changing, therefore, reasonable 

people would find a caretaker would do the same while baby-sitting a 

child overnight. a> 23-25; CP 54-57; CP 211-213; cp 4(J)-416; a> 419; CP 422; CP 

424-426; a> 42-48; 

Error# 4: The trial court erred including a washed-out conviction 

in the current offender scoring, which increased the sentence that 

is imposed, raising the offender score three (3) points. 

The wash-out vested under the Sk Cause 93-1-00180-0, where the 

prior law operated prior to the change excluding wash-out of prior 

juvenile crimes, and therefore the trial court erred including the 

washed-out juvenile convictions in the present case. 

The triggering event vested under the prior laws, and therefore 

the appellant is entitled to enjoy exclusion of the history, where 

due process is implicated, once the right vested in prior law. 

APPEllANI' BmF - 4 



C. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

The appellant is a registered sex offender, having plead guilty 

to two (2) counts of first degree child rape in 1993. CP 102-113; 

The complaining parties were his two (2) nephews, who chose to 

have contact with appellant restored by the superior court in 2004/ 

2005, and normal family relations resumed. CP42~; 

The Court of Appeals reversed the 1993 conviction's sentence in 

2002, finding the 1988 and 1989 juvenile history washed at the age 

of fifteen (15), on September 12, 1989, and excluded such from the 

1993 case sentence. The appellant was resentenced on Dec. 19, 2002 

without inclusion of the two (2) juvenile crimes. 

The superior court issued a certificate of finality in the 1993 

case o!l June 15, 2005, which restored all rights except the right to 

bear arms, therefore appellant's rights to child care was restored, 

and appellant was in care or custody of his son. CP,~281; 

The appellant married Marissa Bettys August 18, 2007, and their 

son was born May 8, 2008, while registered as a sex offender under 

the 1993 conviction. cp 238; 1RP at 88; 

Mr. & Mrs. King, appellant's nephew and his wife allowed their 

son MIF to be baby-sat by appellant overnight, and drove to school 

daily by appellant for several months, knowing appellant's rights 

had previously been restored, and appellant had his own young son 

in his care or custody since his birth in 2008. cp 2l3; cp 413--414; cp 

422; cp 424-426; cp 429-4:I); cp 437-441; 1RP at 46--54; 1RP at 55-61; 1RP at 82-86; 

1RP at 92-94; 1RP at 111- 115; 
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Mr. & Mrs. King's son MIF disclosed appellant touched outside 

of his clothing over his penise area sometime in the past, while 

he was being baby-sat overnight at appellant's home. This was to 

s have been reported to law enforcement July 12, 2009, after MIF' 

disclosure to his maternal grandmother, without clarification for 

the purpose of the touch alleged. CP 26-27; CP 213; 

The trial court excluded appellant's past sexual offense on 

December 22, 2010 under ER 404(b), finding the only purpose would 

be to show the appellant acted in conformity with the past, and is 

therefore to prejudicial to the present case. Therefore, the trial 

court could not use the 1993 offense in the alford plea, nor should 

it be weighed into evidence by the Court of Appeals herein. 

The Detective Mike Hansen investigated the July 12, 2009 case 

complaint, finding that appellant drove the child to school daily, 

was on the school's records as authorized to have custody of this 

child with parental approval, appellant was found to bathed MIF, 

feed MIF, discipline MIF, and baby-sit the child at appellant's own 

home overnight, therefore the record showed appellant was caretaker 

of the young child regularly, with parents approval. CP 171-179; CP 417; 

CP 419; CP 422; CP 424-426; CP 66; lRP at 46-54; lRP at 55-62; 1RP at 62-72; lRP at 

72-76; lRP at 76-8); 1RP at ffi-86; lRP at 91--96; 1RP at 105-118; 

The appellant became aware of WAC 388-15-009(3) after alford's 

plea was accepted, which allows touching of the sexual or intimate 

parts of a child if done by a parentally approved caretaker, and 

appellant is proven by court record to be the child's parentally 

approved caretaker, therefore the sexual offense should be dismissed. 
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This case alleged a fleeting touch outside clothing, as parties 

agreed December 22, 2010 hearings, and apparently was for the purpose 

of checking the child's pull-up diaper, the same as appellant would 

check his own son's disposible diapers, and MIF testified to pull-up 

being checked by the fleeting touch charged. 1RP at 27 Line 22-25; 1RP at 

28 Line 9-22; 1RP at 32 Line 20--25; 1RP at 37 Line 1-10; 1RP at 38 Line 6-7; 1RP at39 

Line 7-21; 1RP at 42 Line 3-25; 1RP at 94 Line 18-25; 1RP at 95 Line 1-19; 

The child's mother testified that she still helped MIF with the 

pull-ups at the time relevant to the charged touch, therefore would 

it not be reasonable appellant might help during overnight stays at 

appellant's horne. 1RP at 122 Line 2-18; 

The child wore pull-ups from after dinner through the night, per 

appellant's wife's testimony. 1RP at 99 Line 16-25; 

The prosecution convicted child's parents for leaving child with 

appellant, therefore state cannot argue appellant did not have "care 

or custody" )of MIF, with parental approval, and appellant's rights to 

child "care or custody" were restored by "Certificate" June 15, 2005 

by Superior Court order. CP 279-282; 1RP at 87-88; 1RP at ffi-86; 

The appellant was convicted of child molestation first degree on 

May 11, 2011, which was reversed under COA# 67111-1-1 March 11, 2013, 

and the alford plea was entered September 26, 2013 to child molestation 

third degree. CP 116-125; 2RP at 10 Line 4-13; 

The final judgment was entered November 26, 2013 "Exceptional 

Sentence" with a January 1, 2014 release date, then modified under 

order December 17, 2013 to extend confinement. 2RP at 10-56;:: EP 1m; 

There simply was no possible way for trial court to find basis 
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finding 'sexual contact' elements of child molestation, thereby the 

reviewing court should provide relief. CP 23-25; (1) 54-57; (1) 211-213; 

D. ARGUMENTS PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BY MODIFYING THE CORRECTLY ENTERED 
FINAL JUDGMENT BY ORDER DECEMBER 17, 2013, WHERE COURT'S 
AUTHORITY TO SENTENCE DOES NOT EXTEND TO DISCRETION FOR 
MODIFYING THE SENTENCE WITHOUT LEGAL ERRORS. 

"The sentencing reform act permits modification of sentence 

only in specific, carefully delineated circumstances, and 

only if it meets the requirements of the sentence reform act 

provisions relating directly to the modification~ Stat~_~ 

Wandell, 175 Wn. App. 447, 311 P.3d 28 (2013); State V. Shove, 

113 Wn.2d 83, 776 P.2d 132 (1989). 

The trial court erred in the December 17, 2013 order, where the 

State's attorney presented no 'legal error' or statute that required 

the sentence modified, therefore the trial court abuse discretionary 

authority modifying the correct final judgment, by application of the 

wrong legal standards. 

"Claim that power to set sentence carries with it power later 

to modify sentence imposed ignores importance of finality in 

these rendered judgments~ State V. Shove, 113 Wn.2d 83, 776 

P.2d 132 (1989). 

The trial court entered the final judgment on November 26, 2013, 

and returned appellant to the Washington State correctional facility 

for processing December 3, 2013, with an established release date of 

January 1, 2014 imposed under RCW 9.94A.535 'exceptional sentencing 

guidelines' standards. CP 164-165; 
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The assistant attorney general filed for a modification of the 

final judgment in December of 2013, merely claiming the Department 

of Corrections was unable to process an 'indeterminate review' for 

release by January 1, 2014, therefore the department needed this 

sentence extended by the court. CP 187-200; 2RP at 33-.56; 

This simply is not a 'legal error' or 'clerical mistatke' that 

could permit the trial court's exercise of discretionary authority 

under the sentencing reform act, and the trial court's power must be 

limited in modifying the final judgment to protect finality in those 

judgments once rendered, therefore without some 'legal error' there 

is an abuse of discretion in trial court's conduct modifying this 

final judgment December 17, 2013, as CrR 7.8 does not apply under the 

circumstances presented herein. CP 187; 

"Modification of a judgment is not appropriate under the SRA 

merely because it appears, wholly in retrospect, that some 

different decision might have been more preferable~ State V. 

Shove, 113 Wn.2d at 88, 776 P.2d 132 (1989). 

Therefore the trial court abused discretion applying the wrong 

legal standards, without sufficient authority in law December 17, 

2013 in this case, prejudicing appellant. CP 177-179; CP 100; 2RP at 35; 

The Department of Corrections has ignored the final judgment of 

record, where the order modifying December 17, 2013 is not "amended 

Judgment or Modified Judgment" documents, therefore the entire case 

sentence is no longer stated upon the judgment as required. 

The actual final judgment in file still continues to list the 

January 1, 2014 release date. CP 164-176; 
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'The department of corrections is not authorized to either 

correct or ignore a final judgment~ Dress V. Department of 

Corrections, 168 Wn. App. 319, 279 P.3d 375 (2013). 

Since the only judgment still officially on record required the 

appellant released January 1, 2014 under RCW 9.94A.535 'exceptional 

sentence' standards, it is clearly established the State's actions 

are an illegal detaining of appellant, where final judgment simply 

has been ignore for the December 17, 2013 order. CP 164-176; 

"Double jeopardy still continues to prohibit increasing any 

correct sentence~ State V. Hardesty, 129 Wn.2d 315, 915 P.2d 

1080 (1996); United S~ates V. DiFranscesco, 449 U.S. 117, 

136-37; 101 S.Ct. 426 (1980); United States V. Lange, 85 U.S. 

163, 18 Wall 163 (1873); State Ex ReI Sharf V. Municipal 

Court, 56 Wn.2d 589, 345 P.2d 692 (1960). 

"A double Jeopardy claim is of constitutional magnitude, and 

may be raised for the first time on appeal~ State V. Land, 

172 Wn. App. 593, 295 P.3d 782 (2013). 

The state's only argument presented for modification was for a 

state's agencies benefit, providing the Department of Corrections a 

longer period for their illegal 'indeterminate sentence review' of 

appellant's sentnece, therefore the order entered December 17, 2013 

is invalid, where trial court applied the wrong legal standards to 

impose the order, and the order modified final judgment, extending 

a correct sentence in violation of 'double j~opardy' protections. 

"Trial court abuses discretion when the trial court rules on 

unsupported facts, takes a view no reasonable person would 
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take, applies the wrong legal standards, or bases its ruling 

on an erroneous view of the laws~ State V. Lord, 161 Wn.2d 

276, 156 P.3d 1261 (2007). 

There is proof the Department of Correction has detained this 

appellant past January 1, 2014, based solely upon the December 17, 

2013 order, thereby the appellant is entitled to relief. 

RCW 9.94A.585(7) does not apply to this case, where it is seen 

that no 'legal error' required the original judgment modified, and 

therefore the trial court should have denied the State's motion on 

grounds the trial court had no authority to modify judgments. 

"The trial court abused discretion because it did not use one 

of the legal standards applicable under CrR 7.8~ State V. 

Lam~, 175 Wn.2d 121, 285 P.3d 27 (2012). 

The same is true in this present case, where the trial court is 

not even presented legal argument under CrR 7.8 to correct an error 

in the original sentence imposed, and nothing allowed the sentence 

rendered modified to benefit the state agency after November 26, 2013. 

The 'double jeopardy' provisions of the United States constitut

-ion are clearly violated by the trial court's December 17, 2013 

order extending the January 1, 2014 release date, without legal error 

on the face of the original judgment. CP 164-176; CP 187-200; CP 218; 

"Double jeopardy still continues to prohibit increasing the 

correct sentence~ State V. Hardesty, 129 Wn.2d 315, 915 P.2d 

1080 (1996). 

Based upon the trial court applying the wrong legal standards in 

ruling on December 17, 2913, the order must be reversed, and appellant 
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immediately released from confinement, where the January 1, 2014 

release date established in the November 26, 2013 original final 

judgment still on official record has past long ago. CP 164-176; 

2. THE TRIAL COURT ALLOWING ILLEGAL 'INDETERMINATE SENTENCE 
REVIEW' OF THE RCW 9.94A.535 'DETERMINATE SENTENCE' ERRED, 
WHERE STATUTORY LAW REQUIRES "DETERMINATE SENTENCE REVIEW. 

"The meaning of a statute is a question of law reviewed de 

novo~ State V. Williams, 147 Wn.2d 476, 55 P.3d 597 (2002); 

State V. Gonzales, 168 Wn.2d 265, 226 P.3d 131 (2010). 

Therefore. the issue is before this court anew and ripe for the 

review solely on the merits of the wording in the statute, and this 

court should ignore past judicial rulings, favorable or not favorable. 

"When interpreting a statute the court's fundamental objective 

is to ascertain and carry out the legislative intent~ State V. 

Jacobs, 154 Wn.2d 596, 115 P.3d 281 (2010). 

The statute is clearly worded regarding RCW 9.94A.535 sentences 

being solely "Determinate Sentences~ and a determinate sentence would 

not be suject to an 'Indeterminate Sentence Review' by the Department 

of Correction's Indeterminate Sentence Review Board, however there is 

a clear showing this was ignored by the trial court's conduct. 2RP at 26; 

"When the plain language is unambiguous, and the legislative 

intent is apparent, we will not construe the statue different~ 

State V. JP, 147 Wn.2d at 450, 69 P.3d 318 (2003). 

Therefore, this issue rest in whether the wording used in this 

statute is unambiguously worded, and whether the legislative intent 

is clearly apparent in the wording of RCW 9.94A.535 to make those 

exceptional sentences 'determinate sentences' only. CP 457-46~; 
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"In judicial interpretation the first rule is the court must 

assume the legislature means exactly what they said~ State V. 

McCraw, 127 Wn.2d 281, 878 P.2d 838 (1995). 

The trial court imposed an exceptional sentence under 9.94A.535 

statute provisions, as stated in the final judgment November 26, 2013, 

and therefore subject to the statutory wording of RCW 9.94A.535 solely. 

CP 164-176; cp 457--4fA; 

Therefore the trial court only abused discretion when the court 

applied the 'indeterminate sentence standards' of RCW 9.94A.507 to a 

RCW 9.94A.535 sentence, where RCW 9.94A.535 specifically requires the 

trial court impose a determinate sentence, per statute's wording. 

"Currently the sentence reform act specifies when sentences 

must be determinate in only two (2) situtations, RCW 9.94A. 

505(2)(b)('an offense with no specific standard range') and 

RCW 9.94A.535('a sentence outside the standard range') see 

State V. Hagler, 150 Wn. App. 196, 208 P.3d 32 (2009). 

Therefore, the issue presented here has been decided prior, and 

the reviewing court found that a sentence imposed under 9.94A.535 is 

a "determinate sentence" only, per statutory law. CP 463; 

The State's attorney cannot prevail in claiming the trial court 

sentencing under RCW 9.94A.535 was not statutorily authorized, nor 

would such arguments prevail, where the legislature permitted this 

trial court's authority in the statutes. 

Thereby, under established judicial interpretation of these 

RCW 9.94A.535 sentences, the trial court failed to properly impose 

the required determinate sentence, when trial court entered a order

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