NO. 71418-0-I

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS – STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION ONE

STATE OF WASHINGTON Respondent,

v.

JOHN BETTYS, Appellant.

ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, FOR SKAGIT COUNTY

The Honorable David R. Needy, Judge

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF

SKAGIT COUNTY PROSECUTING ATTORNEY RICHARD A. WEYRICH, PROSECUTOR

By: ERIK PEDERSEN, WSBA#20015 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Office Identification #91059

Courthouse Annex 605 South Third Mount Vernon, WA 98273 Ph: (360) 336-9460

I. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

John Bettys filed a notice of appeal from his guilty plea pursuant to a plea agreement and the resulting judgment and sentence. The trial court imposed a contingent exceptional sentence on a sentence under RCW 9.94A.507 ordering release if the defendant were not enrolled in treatment by a date just a month out in the Department of Corrections. The Department of Corrections brought the impropriety to the court's attention, while making it a priority to get Bettys into treatment. The trial court extended the date by which to have Bettys in treatment and he was in treatment by that date.

Bettys argues the trial court lacked authority to modify the sentence by extending the treatment deadline. The trial court lacked the authority to order release under RCW 9.94A.507 pursuant to an exceptional sentence.

Despite acknowledging a factual basis sufficient to support his guilty plea at the time of the plea, Bettys now contends the trial court erred in finding there was an adequate basis to believe there was sexual contact. He cites to matter which the trial court did not rely upon in accepting the plea. Finally, despite agreeing to his prior convictions and offender score, Bettys contends he had a vested right to wash-out of a prior conviction. Bettys fails to recognize he is scored under the current scoring structure.

Bettys' conviction and sentence must be affirmed.

II. ISSUES

- Did the trial court have authority to impose an exceptional sentence of release of a defendant sentenced as an indeterminate sentence under RCW 9.94A.507?
- 2. Did the trial court impermissibly extend the period of contingency to determine if Bettys qualified for treatment?
- 3. Where a defendant acknowledges facts adequate for him to be found guilty of a greater offense, may he seek to challenge the plea based upon factual contentions?
- 4. Did the defendant agree to his prior convictions and their scoring?
- 5. Where the scoring rules changed, did the defendant retain a vested right to wash-out of his prior conviction?

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On September 3, 2013, John Bettys pled guilty to Child Molestation in the Third Degree. CP 115 (Appendix A), CP 116-25 (Appendix B). Bettys had a prior conviction for a sexual offense and therefore was subject to be sentenced under RCW 9.94A.507 to statutory maximum and a minimum sentence within the standard range. CP 117-9. Given Bettys' offender score of 9+ and the charge of Child Molestation in the Third

Degree, there was no standard range just the top of the statutory maximum of 60 months. CP 117. Bettys agreed to his prior convictions and to the offender scoring as provided on the plea form. CP 117. Because Bettys' alleged victim was under age twelve and Bettys was reluctant to admit guilt, Bettys agreed to plead guilty to enter a *Alford* plea which was also pursuant to *State v. Newton*, *State v. Zhao* and *In re Barr*. CP 124. The plea form read as follows:

This guilty plea is made pursuant to North Carolina v. Alford, 400 U.S. 25, 91 S.Ct. 160, 27 L.Ed.2d 162 (1970), State v. Newton, 87 Wn.2d 363, 552 P.2d 682 (1976), State v. Zhao, 157 Wn. 2d 188, 193, 137 P.3d 835, 837 (2006) and In Re Pers. Restraint of Barr, 102 Wn.2d 265, 684 P.2d 712 (1984). Pursuant to this case law, I agree there is a factual basis for the plea to a more serious charge based upon the reading of the declaration for determination of probable cause filed with the court February 19, 2010. I know and understand the evidence that could be used to attempt to convict me on the originally charged offenses (having reviewed the discovery and heard testimony in a prior trial), the elements of the originally charged offenses, the elements of the amended charges, that the evidence did not support the amended charges and, that the sanctions or consequences of the amended charges were less onerous to him than the sanctions or consequences of the original charges. With all of this in mind, I make an informed, knowing and intelligent choice to freely and voluntarily enter a plea of guilty to the amended charge.

CP 124. As this language indicated, Bettys agreed there was a factual basis for the greater charge based upon the probable cause declaration. CP 124,

CP 26-40, CP 26-40 (Affidavit/Declaration of Probable Cause), 9/26/13 Transcribed RP 5-6 (See Appendix F attached hereto).

The Stat5e indicated that it was seeking the statutory maximum sentence which of 60 months under RCW 9.94A.507(3). CP 120.

The trial court continued the case and provided for payment for a sexual deviancy evaluation before sentencing to evaluate Bettys' amenability to treatment and expedite the possibility of treatment while Bettys was in the Department of Corrections (DOC). CP 126, 12/17/13 RP 43¹.

At sentencing, Bettys sought an exceptional sentence to provide for immediate release, with treatment in the community. 11/26/13 RP 17-8. The State pointed out that the trial court was compelled to sentence Bettys to the 60 months. 11/26/13 RP 12.

The trial court imposed the 60 months sentence, but added a provision termed to be an exceptional sentence providing for release should the DOC not place the defendant into treatment in the department. CP 167. It read:

So long as the Department of Corrections is providing sex offender treatment to the defendant in custody, then this is a

¹ The State will refer to the verbatim report of proceedings by using the date followed by "RP" and the page number.

[&]quot;DATE RP NAME OF HEARING.

RCW 9.94A.712² sentence and the minimum term is 60 months and the maximum term is 60 months.

If the department fails to commence sex offender treatment by January 1, 2014, then the defendant shall be immediately released from prison and placed on to community custody for the balance of the sixty month prison term. The defendant will immediately (within 20 days) enroll in sex offender treatment with ta certified sexual offense treatment provider. with all treatment defendant will comply recommendations and comply with the conditions of Appendix F. Failure to comply with any of these conditions of community custody will result in a hearing before the trial court. The Court retains the authority to return the defendant to prison for the balance of the 60 month term of any other terms the court deems appropriate.

CP 167 (Appendix D at page 4)

DOC nearly immediately challenged the sentence and a hearing was held December 17, 2013. 12/17/13 RP 33-55.

DOC pointed out the trial court was bound to sentence Bettys to the 60 months, pursuant to RCW 9.94A.507, and that it was up to the indeterminate sentence review board under RCW 9.95.420 to determine the point of release of Bettys, not the court. 12/17/13 RP 34-5.

DOC specifically requested the trial court to strike the clause to provide for release by January 1, 2014, because the trial court lacked that authority. 12/17/13 RP 40. DOC also explained that under the expedited

² RCW 9.94A.712 was recodified in 2008 as RCW 9.94A.507.

time frame DOC could not accommodate evaluating Bettys for treatment. 12/7/13 RP 36-9.

The trial court ended up extending the deadline from the Judgment and Sentence to have Bettys into treatment to February 1, 2014, but retaining the other language in the Judgment and Sentence. CP 180 (Appendix E), 12/17/13 RP 53. The timing preserved DOC's time frame to file a post-sentence petition. 12/7/13 RP 53-4.

As of a review hearing on February 5, 2014, Bettys was in enrolled in the sex offender treatment program. 2/5/14 RP 3. Bettys' counsel acknowledged that DOC was in compliance with the judgment and sentence provision that he be enrolled in treatment as was extended. 2/5/14 RP 3. Pro se, Bettys, still contended that the trial court should not have permitted the extension, and that he wasn't in treatment by January 1, 2014, that he should be released. 2/5/14 RP 3-4, 6-7. The trial court denied Bettys' motion to reconsider the order of December 17, 2013, since Bettys was enrolled in treatment at DOC. CP 218.

IV. ARGUMENT

 Under RCW 9.94A.507, the trial court have lacked authority to impose the contingent portion of the sentence to an exceptional sentence of release but the provision was not triggered.

Bettys contends the trial court lacked authority to enter an order of December 17, 2013, extending the time for him to be enrolled in sexual deviancy treatment. Opening Brief of Appellant at page 8. He contends that without that extension, under the terms of the judgment and sentence, he was required to be released under the exceptional sentence provision to treatment in the community. Opening Brief of Appellant at page 9.

However, the trial court lacked authority to impose such an exceptional sentence. RCW 9.94A.507(1) requires sex offenders to be sentenced under that section if they qualify. Bettys prior sex offense conviction qualified him. RCW 9.94A.507(1)(b). Thus, Bettys would not qualify for seeking an exceptional sentence under RCW 9.94A.535. In addition, there is the limited ability to seek an exceptional sentence on a sex offense which pertains only to the minimum term. Under RCW 9.94A.507(3)(a) the trial court is required to set the term of confinement at the statutory maximum, and set a minimum term. The minimum term may be outside the standard range based upon an exceptional sentence under RCW 9.94A.535.

RCW 9.94A.535 and RCW 9.94.507 are not inconsistent and can be applied to the same sentence as demonstrated above by the language or RCW 9.94A.507(3). But, RCW 9.94A.505(2)(a) requires that that the court "shall impose a sentence as provided in the following sections and as applicable in the case...(ix) RCW 9.94A.507 relating to certain sex offenses." So that must be imposed if applicable. RCW 9.94A.505(2)(a)(x) also permits exceptional sentences which must qualify pursuant to the statute. And no provision of RCW 9.94A.505, RCW 9.94A.507, or RCW 9.94A.535 provides that an exceptional sentence under RCW 9.94A.535 removes the requirement for a sentence under RCW 9.94A.507 if a defendant qualifies.

Here, the trial court did not set an exceptional minimum term, instead setting the minimum term at 60 months. However, the trial court provided for release to treatment in the community if Bettys could not get into treatment at DOC. That provision infringed on the indeterminate sentence review board obligation to determine release.

When a court sentences a person to the custody of the department under this section, the court shall, in addition to the other terms of the sentence, sentence the offender to community custody under the supervision of the department and the authority of the board for any period of time the person is released from total confinement before the expiration of the maximum sentence.

RCW 9.94A.507(5). The indeterminate sentence review board has the authority to set release eligibility. RCW 9.95.011(2), RCW 9.94A.420.

And it was DOC which brought the matter to the trial court's attention. DOC has such express authority since DOC is tasked with executing a sentence. RCW 9.94A.535 provides that there may be an appeal from an exceptional sentence as provided in RCW 9.94A.585 which provides express authority to the DOC while requiring DOC to attempt to resolve the dispute prior to challenging the sentence.

The department may petition for a review of a sentence committing an offender to the custody or jurisdiction of the department. The review shall be limited to errors of law. Such petition shall be filed with the court of appeals no later than ninety days after the department has actual knowledge of terms of the sentence. The petition shall include a certification by the department that all reasonable efforts to resolve the dispute at the superior court level have been exhausted.

RCW 9.94A.585 (emphasis added). Thus, DOC was obligated to seek to resolve the improper exceptional sentence. By extending the time to get into the sexual deviancy treatment, DOC was able to avoid the automatic trigger to the improper exceptional sentence, thereby obviating the need for DOC to pursue a post-sentence petition as required by RCW 9.94A.585.

Thus, the order modifying the judgment and sentence of December 17, 2013, did not improperly modify a proper judgment and sentence and Bettys' argument fails.

2. Where a defendant acknowledges facts adequate for him to be found guilty of a greater offense, he cannot seek to challenge the plea by factual arguments.

Contrary to Bettys' contention the factual record before the trial court at the time of the plea was sufficient for a jury to find him guilty of the greater offense of Child Molestation in the First Degree.

A review of factual sufficiency is confined to the record at the time of the plea.

In re Pers. Restraint of Clements, 125 Wn. App. 634, 643, 106 P.3d 244 (2005) citing State v. Arnold, 81 Wn. App. 379, 382, 914 P.2d 762 (1996).

CrR 4.2(d) requires the judge to be satisfied that a factual basis exists for the plea being given. In order to determine that a factual basis exists for a plea, the judge need not be convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant is guilty. State v. Saas, 118 Wn.2d 37, 43, 820 P.2d 505 (1991) (citing State v. Newton, 87 Wn.2d 363, 370, 552 P.2d 682 (1976)). Instead, a factual basis exists if the evidence is sufficient for a jury to conclude that the defendant is guilty. Newton, 87 Wn.2d at 370. The court may consider any reliable source of information to determine whether sufficient evidence exists to support the plea, as long as it is made part of the record at the time of the plea. State v. Osborne, 102 Wn.2d 87, 95, 684 P.2d 683 (1984) (citing In re Keene, 95 Wn. 2d 203, 210 n.2, 622 P.2d 360 (1980)).

State v. Arnold, 81 Wn. App. at 382, 914 P.2d 762 (1996). Here Bettys entered a plea pursuant to State v. Zhao. CP 124. In State v. Zhao, 157 Wn.2d 188, 204, 137 P.3d 835, 843 (2006), the Supreme Court expressly approved of the procedure by which a defendant may plead guilty to

amended charges for which there is no factual basis where there was a factual basis for a greater charge.

In addition, in the same statement he explicitly authorized the court to consider the "statement of probable cause supplied by the prosecution to establish a factual basis for the plea and for the factual basis for the greater offenses." CP 124. That probable cause declaration provides sufficient evidence for the court to believe a jury could find the defendant guilty of child molestation in the first degree. CP 27-40.

Bettys seeks to undermine the facts supporting the plea by referencing selected portions of the trial transcripts, omitting the defendant's child hearsay statements which were admitted, making references to certain regulations and supplementing pleadings from statements of others and other cases. This exceeds the record that was presented at the trial court.

The position he now takes also contradicts Bettys' own statement in the guilty plea where he indicated: "I agree there is a factual basis for the plea to a *more serious charge* based upon the reading of the declaration for determination of probable cause filed with the court February 19, 2010." CP 124.

Finally, Bettys' additional materials and references are to a defense to the charge alleged and to which he plead guilty. The other evidence in the case could lead a jury to conclude the defendant is guilty.³

Bettys has not established that the record before the trial court at the time of the guilty plea was inadequate to believe a jury could find him guilty.

3. The defendant agreed to his prior convictions, their scoring and the prior offense had not remained washed out.

Bettys contends his prior conviction occurring prior to his fifteenth birthday should not have been included in his offender score. Opening Brief of Appellant at page 24-5. He contends that since they washed in a prior judgment and sentence they should remain washed out.

At the outset, the State notes that the defendant and his counsel specifically agreed to his prior history and the scoring of those offenses in the guilty plea form. CP 117. In addition, his prior juvenile convictions were never vacated and no vested right exists to scoring of prior convictions.

The legislature amended the definition of "criminal history" in 2002. LAWS OF 2002, ch. 107, § 2(13); *State v. Varga*, 151 Wn.2d 179, 193, 86 P.3d 139 (2004). Before the amendment, a defendant's "criminal history"

In the prior trial, the jury did reach that determination that Bettys was guilty of Child Molestation in the First Degree based upon the trial testimony. Reversal was a result in the improper admission of evidence of prior acts of sexual conduct of Bettys under RCW 10.58.090.

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